# TOWN OF GILL

MASSACHUSETTS



www.gillmass.org

#### SELECTBOARD MEETING MINUTES February 1, 2021

The meeting was conducted remotely by all participants due to the State of Emergency related to COVID-19 and under the "Order Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting, G.L. c. 30A, §20" issued by Governor Baker on 3/12/20.

Called to Order: The videoconference meeting was called to order at 5:30 PM.

<u>Members Present:</u> John Ward, Greg Snedeker and Randy Crochier <u>Members Absent</u>: None <u>Others Present:</u> Ray Purington, Town Administrator; Jerri Higgins, and Gene Beaubien

<u>COVID-19 Topics</u>: Phase 2 of the Massachusetts COVID vaccinations started today. Phase 2 starts off with vaccines for people ages 75 and up.

Review of Minutes: No minutes were ready for review and approval.

<u>Personnel Committee Extension</u>: The Personnel Committee is reviewing the Board of Assessors' request to increase the hours of their Clerk/Assistant from 20 to 30 hours per week. After the request was defeated at the November town meeting, the Personnel Committee took up the matter with an eye toward making a recommendation for the FY22 budget cycle. The Town's Personnel Policies set a February 1<sup>st</sup> deadline for the Personnel Committee to make its recommendations to the Selectboard. At the Committee's January 28<sup>th</sup> meeting it was decided to ask the Selectboard for an extension to March 1, 2021. John made a motion, seconded by Greg, to grant the extension. The roll call vote was unanimous in the affirmative.

<u>FRCOG 2021 District Local Technical Assistance (DLTA):</u> Randy recused himself from this topic as he is employed by the FRCOG in its Cooperative Public Health Service. Ray explained the FRCOG has requested input from its member towns for projects to receive technical assistance in 2021. The request form was distributed to all of Gill's departments, boards, and committees, and the only response Ray received was from Highway Superintendent John Miner. Miner requested the FRCOG's assistance for an assessment of the Town's culverts in order to map their locations and to be able to prioritize repairs and upgrades.

Ray recommended the Town also request technical assistance related to FirstLight's relicensing application with the FERC, COVID vaccination efforts, and the local officials' continuing education workshops. John asked about requesting an assessment of the Town's roads. Ray cautioned the DLTA funds must be used within the 2021 calendar year, and it might overload the Highway Superintendent if the culvert and road assessments both receive funding. It was decided to submit two lists of top 3 priorities, one for the Town and one for regional needs.

John made a motion, seconded by Greg, to request DLTA funding for three Town projects: 1) FirstLight relicensing, 2) culvert assessment, and 3) road conditions assessment and for three regional projects: 1) COVID vaccinations, 2) FirstLight relicensing, and 3) local officials' workshops. The motion passed on a 2-0 roll call vote (John and Greg) with Randy abstaining from the vote.

<u>Renewal with FRCOG Cooperative Public Health Service:</u> Randy recused himself from this topic as he is employed by the FRCOG in its Cooperative Public Health Service. Ray reported it is time to renew the inter-municipal agreement with the FRCOG for the Town's FY21 – FY23 participation in the Cooperative Public Health Service district. In recognition of the value and importance of the district membership, John made a motion, seconded by Greg, to renew with the district and authorize Ray to sign the inter-municipal agreement. The motion passed on a 2-0 roll call vote (John and Greg) with Randy abstaining from the vote. <u>Brush Burning Permits</u>: Fire Chief Gene Beaubien noted residents should request brush burning permits using the online application form whenever possible. Shelburne Control has limited resources to process telephone requests and must prioritize 9-1-1 calls ahead of burn permits.

<u>GMRSD State Aid:</u> Jerri Higgins asked about a report that the GMRSD's FY22 Chapter 70 aid will be reduced because the state is using FY20 enrollment figures, rumored to be down statewide due to more parents choosing to home school their children because of the COVID pandemic. GMRSD officials are felt to be better able to answer the question. It is too soon to know the impact on Gill's budget.

<u>6 Town Regional Planning Board:</u> Greg reported the 6 Town Board submitted a grant application to DESE last week for one more round of funding for its exploratory work on possible impacts of merging the Gill-Montague and Pioneer regional school districts. If it is awarded, the grant will allow the Board to look at a 5-year financial plan for the combined district and take a deeper dive into what the district's program offerings could be.

<u>Warrant:</u> Randy reported he reviewed and signed the FY 2021 warrant # 15 on January 20<sup>th</sup>, with totals of \$27,355.55 for payroll, and \$42,471.14 for vendors. Randy reported he reviewed and signed the FY 2021 warrant # 16 on February 1<sup>st</sup>, with totals of \$23,709.04 for payroll, and \$126,157.92 for vendors.

The meeting adjourned at 5:57 PM.

Minutes respectfully submitted by Ray Purington, Town Administrator

Signed copy on file. Approved on 02/16/2021

Greg Snedeker, Selectboard Clerk



## 2021 Local Technical Assistance Request Form

*Please review with Town committees, boards, and departments, and email one consolidated and prioritized list per Town to* <u>adoster@frcoq.org</u> by **February 5, 2021**. If you need to mail or fax the form instead, please email for further instructions.

Town: \_\_\_\_\_

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

Your Name: \_\_\_\_\_

Board/Department: \_\_\_\_\_

**INSTRUCTIONS:** Check the column or box for each project your Town/City is interested in. Rank your top 3 priorities at the end of the form.

✓ YES	ENERGY & ENVIRONMENT: CLIMATE CHANGE ADAPTATION AND RESILIENCE	Contact for Project: name & email or phone #
	<b>Community Food Assessments.</b> Examine a town's food system, including analysis of food supply and demand, economic development through food processing or distribution, increased food production of farmland, increased food access for residents, and other elements.	
	<b>Culvert Assessments.</b> Assess roadway culverts to identify which crossings are at risk due to more frequent and intense storm events caused by climate change. Information will help towns prioritize infrastructure upgrades in addition to providing an inventory of physical infrastructure.	
	<b>Managing Flood Risks Regionally</b> . Implement the recommendations in the Framework for Resilience: Responding to Climate Change in the Deerfield River Watershed. Work with neighboring watershed towns to prioritize and implement appropriate river corridor management strategies, flood resiliency, and infrastructure improvements.	
	<b>Pollinator Habitat Corridor.</b> Create a town pollinator habitat implementation plan and connect it to the regional Franklin County pollinator habitat corridor plan. Local plan includes mapping and analysis, recommendations for updates to land use regulations and landscape management of public properties and roads, planting plans for a variety of landscapes and built environments to support pollinator life cycle needs, and educational outreach to stakeholders. The health and diversity of native pollinators increases the climate resiliency of our environment and supports resilient food systems.	
	<b>Regional Water Supply Study.</b> Assess the short and long term capacity of community water supplies in the region. Identify implementation strategies to sustain and protect drinking water supplies and make them more resilient to climate change events including droughts and flooding.	

✓ YES	HOUSING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT	Contact for Project: name
		& email or phone #
	<b>Brownfields Redevelopment Support.</b> Provide site specific technical assistance to assess, clean-up, and/or redevelop a brownfield site, with property owner support.	
	Community Economic Development Project (please specify):	
	Conduct survey to understand what residents, businesses and visitors want for economic activity in their downtown or community.	
	Conduct a parcel-level analysis of village center or downtown uses and businesses, and identify properties with potential for redevelopment.	
	<ul> <li>Develop a mixed use, economic development and/or housing action plan for a village center or downtown.</li> <li>Provide technical assistance to create new or expand planned industrial park land.</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>Update Industrial Park Master Plan, including review of current bylaws and regulations governing the park, and assessing developable land remaining.</li> </ul>	
	□ Other:	
	<b>Creative Placemaking.</b> Develop and implement a pop-up park or public art project, including how to create and implement a project that fosters economic and main street activity. <i>For projects seeking funds from MassDevelopment Commonwealth Places, work can include assistance in developing a funding campaign.</i>	
	<b>Deerfield River Outdoor Recreation Study.</b> Work with Deerfield River communities (Buckland, Charlemont, Conway, Deerfield, Hawley, Monroe, Rowe and Shelburne) to access resources to fund a study that	
	assesses the current situation and recommends strategies to support outdoor recreation that balances economic development with environmental and community health.	
	Housing Planning and Implementation Technical Assistance to (please specify):	
	<ul> <li>Create a Housing Production Plan (5-year plan that identifies the housing needs of a community and outline the strategies a town can take toward meeting those needs).</li> </ul>	
	Conduct a housing needs assessment and/or housing needs survey.	
	Implement local housing initiatives such as drafting zoning changes, setting up CPA-funded housing programs, establishing a municipal affordable housing trust, or identifying potential sites for affordable housing development. Please specific.	
	<ul> <li>housing development. Please specify:</li> <li>Implement one or more MA Housing Choice Initiative best practices and/or apply for Housing Choice</li> </ul>	

	<b>Incentivize Opportunity Zones.</b> Assist with project or parcel identification and developing zoning and permitting recommendations in federally designated Opportunity Zones in Charlemont, Colrain, Erving, Greenfield, Hawley, Heath, Monroe, Montague, Orange, Rowe, Wendell and Warwick, and work with other regions and the Commonwealth on marketing.	
	<b>Small Town Housing Working Group.</b> Continue to convene municipal housing stakeholders to work on housing issues and challenges in smaller towns, and develop shared solutions to address housing needs and barriers. Provide contact information for individuals wishing to be added to the email list for meeting notifications:	
✓ YES	MUNICIPAL CAPACITY BUILDING	Contact for Project: name & email or phone #
	<b>Local Official Continuing Education Workshops.</b> Continue to offer workshops to Select Board, Planning Board, Board of Health, Finance Committee members and other public officials (fiscal planning, open meeting law, school finance, new state policies and initiatives, etc.). <i>Please share your ideas for workshop topics:</i>	
	<b>Foster Municipal engagement and involvement.</b> Consider how towns can increase citizen engagement and prepare for retirements of long-term public servants in key municipal positions – appointed, elected and volunteer – through development of a Citizen's Academy, succession planning, participation in career fairs and expos, etc.	
	<b>Rural Policy Plan Implementation.</b> Allows for staff to dedicate time and resources to implementation of the most important recommendations to Franklin County.	
✓ YES	COVID RESPONSE	Contact for Project: name & email or phone #
	Vaccination Planning, Delivery and Review. FRCOG staff support (EPP, CPHS, other) planning, implementation, and after action review of Franklin County COVID vaccination clinics.	

✓ YES	SHARED SERVICES	Contact for Project: name
		& email or phone #
	Information Technology Services Sharing: Explore feasibility or continue work to establish new shared	
	services (please specify):	
	<ul> <li>Design a regional shared IT services program to maximize technology resources across communities</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>Develop IT resiliency, recovery, and contingency plans that position the community to effectively</li> </ul>	
	manage unforeseen events	
	Other (please specify):	
	Other Municipal Services Sharing: Explore feasibility or continue work to establish new shared services	
	(please specify):	
	Department of Public Works	
	Facilities management of municipal buildings and grounds	
	Human Resource management	
	Library Programming/Administration	
	Municipal Financial Services	
	Shared Town Risk Manager/ OSHA compliance officer	
	<b>New Collective Purchasing ideas</b> . Continue to research and develop new goods and/or services that can be	
	procured on behalf of multiple towns/schools ( <i>please specify</i> ):	
	<ul> <li>Expansion of fuel bids to include additional fuels</li> </ul>	
	Other: please share your idea(s):	
	Public Health Sharing	
	<ul> <li>Explore sharing local health agent services with another towns</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>Set up a permanent public health nursing sharing arrangement with neighboring towns</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>Review options for joining an existing health district in Franklin County.</li> </ul>	
	Public Safety Sharing: Explore feasibility or continue work to establish new shared services (please	
	specify):	
	Ambulance services and EMTs	
	Emergency Management Director	
	Fire services sharing	

	Shared Senior Services: Explore feasibility or continue work to establish new shared services:         Senior Centers         Senior Housing         Other:	
✓ YES	TRANSPORTATION	Contact for Project: name & email or phone #
	<b>Ensure a Safe Infrastructure Through Improved Visibility.</b> Assess intersections for visibility obstructions like overgrown vegetation, assess sign reflectivity and pavement markings throughout the town, and provide bylaw templates for abutter maintenance such as tree and bush trimming.	
	<b>EV Charging Station Implementation Assistance.</b> Assist towns through the process of siting, applying for incentives, and purchasing and installing public EV charging stations.	
	<b>Older Driver Mobility and Safety Campaign.</b> Coordinate with the Franklin Regional Transit Authority and the local Councils on Aging to assess available transportation services beyond driving for seniors, assess signs and visibility at intersections, and produce outreach materials for senior drivers.	
✓ YES	ZONING, POLICIES, AND PLANS	Contact for Project: name & email or phone #
	Age and Dementia Friendly Community Planning. Conduct an Age and Dementia-Friendly community planning process, including application to the AARP Network, development of an assessment and an action plan for the Town.	
	Open Space and Recreation Plan (OSRP) Update. Work with the town to update their existing OSRP, a document to inventory and assess the condition of open space, natural resources, parks, and other recreation facilities. <ul> <li>New update</li> <li>Update continued from previous year</li> <li>OSRP Expiration Date:</li> </ul>	

	ational Marijuana Assistance (please specify):	
	Zoning for retail sales and/or cultivation	
	Development of local Board of Health regulations & other policies to prevent youth use.	
Regio	nal Planning/Technical Assistance for Large Scale Utility Projects (please specify):	
	Northfield Mountain Pumped Storage Project /Turners Falls Dam FERC relicensing	
	Tri-State economic resiliency work	
Wellh	ead Protection Plans to Protect Public Drinking Water Supplies. Develop a Wellhead Protection	
Plan, v	which can help towns manage and protect their water supply sources.	
Zonin	g Bylaws and/or City Ordinance Development (please specify):	
	Affordable housing / Diversifying housing options / Accessory Dwelling Units	
	Clean energy (e.g. solar bylaws or updates to solar bylaws to protect pollinator habitat)	
	Climate Resilient Stormwater Management Standards for new development and redevelopment	
	projects using Low Impact Development (LID) techniques.	
	Develop or update a Master Plan chapter for Housing or Economic Development.	
	Land conservation that protects natural resources and promotes smart growth	
	Large-scale commercial/industrial development	
	Mixed use districts / Village districts	
	New development standards for tree retention	
	Updates to Open Space Residential Development / Natural Resource Protection Zoning to align with current best practices to protect natural resources	
	Recreational marijuana (retail, cultivation, processing)	
	River Corridor Management for towns with a mapped River Corridor (Ashfield, Conway, Colrain, Heath, Greenfield, Leyden)	
	Short term residential rentals (such as VRBO and Airbnb)	
	Update Existing Floodplain Bylaws/Ordinances with the new state model Floodplain Bylaw for the FEMA regulated 100-year floodplain	
	Update Subdivision Rules and Regulations to incorporate Low Impact Development (LID) and to align with current stormwater and neighborhood roadway design best practices	
	Other:	

RANK	Of all of the projects you selected, what are your municipality's top three priorities? While we can't guarantee that these projects
	will be selected, we will make every effort.

Your Municipality's Top 3 Choices:

1.

2.

3.

If all Franklin County towns respond by 2/5/2021, we aim to have projects selected by mid-February. We will send out notification to you once that is complete. Thank you for your time – we look forward to working with you.



Agreement between the Town of Gill and the Franklin Regional Council of Governments for the Cooperative Public Health Service

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the Town of Gill, as one of the Towns participating in the <u>Cooperative Public Health Service</u>, and <u>The Franklin Regional Council of</u> <u>Governments</u> (FRCOG).

WHEREAS, pursuant to M.G.L. Ch. 40 Sec. 4A the Towns have entered into an Agreement for the sharing of public health services creating a common health service , known as the Cooperative Public Health Service (CPHS) in order to improve local public health capacity and access to trained and experienced public health professionals and meet community and regional responsibilities. The regional service will offer a comprehensive set of public health services, including housing, food, septic, camp, pool and other inspections, as well as grant writing and public health nursing. Towns may be members of CPHS either for comprehensive services or shared services (one of 4 programs, or bundled shared services: Food Safety, Title 5 and Private Well, Community Sanitation, and Public Health Nursing);

WHEREAS, the Towns participating in the CPHS are seeking to engage FRCOG as a Host Agency to provide comprehensive fiscal, staffing, and programmatic services on behalf of the CPHS.

WHEREAS, the Town pursuant to M.G. L. C. 40, s.4A has obtained authorization to enter into this Agreement by vote of its Board of Health and Select Board,

NOW, THEREFORE, the Town and FRCOG, in mutual consideration of the covenants contained herein, intending to be legally bound thereby, agree under seal as follows:

### <u>1. TERM</u>

The term of this Agreement shall be three years commencing upon execution by the Town and FRCOG. It shall renew automatically after the first term for 1 additional year unless amended as set forth herein in section 8, or earlier terminated as set forth herein in Section 11.

### 2. GOVERNANCE

The CPHS shall have an Oversight Board convened no less than quarterly by the FRCOG and the Oversight Board Chair/Co-Chairs.

- Composition: one board of health member and one alternate, both appointed by the Board of Health from each member Town.
- Voting: One Town, one vote, by scope of involvement. Every member shall have an equal voice in determining shared priorities, but only those who use a service may vote on matters specific to that service. In general policy and cross-cutting service matters, each Town has the same weight to their vote. For budget related matters, weights will match the budget assessment formula, to be set by the Oversight Board and FRCOG through the annual budget process.
- Roles and Responsibilities of the Oversight Board:
  - Meet on a regular basis
  - Develop annual and long-term goals for the CPHS
  - Set CPHS staff priorities
  - Active involvement with hiring
  - o Establish CPHS fees and assessment formula for the next year
  - Adopt any CPHS-wide policies and recommended regulations
  - Review and approve draft operating budgets
  - o Review financial status
  - o Review and act on reports from staff
  - o Participate in hiring and performance evaluations of staff

### 3. DUTIES OF HOST AGENCY

The FRCOG shall seek to provide the following services to the Towns:

- 1. Hire and supervise staff. Hiring processes and goal setting will be done in collaboration with members of the Oversight Board.
- 2. Provide the Town with comprehensive public health services listed in Attachment A (Community Sanitation, Food Safety, Title 5 and Private Well and Public Health Nursing):
  - a. Perform housing inspections and code enforcement as required and regulated by State Sanitary Code Chapter II, 105 CMR 410.000.
  - b. Conduct Lead Paint inspections and determinations as required and regulated by the Lead Poisoning Prevention and Control Law, State Sanitary Code, 105 CMR 460.00. The BOH is required to have access to a certified lead determinator in all cases of a housing complaint, for any reason, where there is a child under 6.
  - c. Perform Septic System Plan reviews and inspections, and witness perc tests, as required by Title 5.
  - d. At the request of the Board of Health, fulfill board responsibilities required by a natural, or man-made disaster, including but not limited to: weather related emergencies, hazardous waste contamination emergency, toxic or hazardous material contamination emergency, or radioactive material contamination emergency.
  - e. Perform sanitary inspection of food establishments, including both permanent and temporary food service establishments (including fairs and farmers markets), as

required and regulated by the Minimum Sanitation Standards for Food Establishments, State Sanitary Code Chapter X, 105 CMR 590.000.

- f. Conduct inspections for licensure of summer recreational camps under (105 CMR 430.000 et. seq.: Minimum Sanitation and Safety Standards for Recreational Camps for Children).
- g. Conducting inspections in support of Board of Health licensing of motels, short term lodging, and manufactured housing communities, under M.G.L. c. 140, s. 32B.
- h. Conduct inspections of family-type campgrounds in support of Board of Health licensure of them under MGL c.140, s. 32B and the Family Type Campground Regulations.
- i. Perform swimming pool inspections under 105 CMR 435.000: Minimum Standards for Swimming Pools (State Sanitary Code, Chapter V).
- j. Assist the Board of Health as requested to implement and enforce state and local laws, rules, and regulations in other public health areas.
- k. Track and follow up on infectious disease reports in the town through administration of the Board of Health's account on MAVEN, the Massachusetts online communicable disease reporting system.
- I. Provide public health nursing services to residents of the town including wellness and immunization clinics and prevention programming.
- m. coordinate with schools, senior centers and other service agencies serving the public health, as needed, to assist in meeting community health goals.
- n. Participate in municipal emergency preparedness planning and exercises
- 3. Write and administer grants to support CPHS Board goals.
- 4. Ensure compliance with all reporting requirements to DPH and all other grantors
- 5. Prepare reports on staff work, grant status, etc. to Oversight Board.
- 6. Ensure compliance with all state laws and regulations, including procurement, purchasing, Open Meeting Law, Conflict of Interest, and Ethics.
- 7. Provide financial management for all funds and invoices related to CPHS operations.
- 8. Create and maintain a public records tracking system for public health work.
- 9. Ensure that financial management and expenditure meets grantor, state, and federal standards, and FRCOG financial policies and practices , including providing an annual audit, payroll, benefits administration, health insurance and bill processing
- 10. Invoice member communities for Cooperative Public Health Service membership assessments
- 11. Provide procurement services for district staff and equipment, as needed.
- 12. Administer personnel policies and supervise staff.
- 13. Maintain liability insurance including worker's compensation for CPHS staff.
- 14. Provide office space for CPHS staff, as needed
- 15. Provide information technology support for CPHS staff, including maintaining web site, computer virus protection and back up, software purchasing and licensing, etc.
- 16. Attend Oversight Board meetings

# 4. OBLIGATIONS OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH

The Town shall appoint one member of its Board of Health as representative to the Oversight Board, and may name an alternate (not required to be a BOH member). Boards of Health shall

actively participate in the governance of the CPHS by attending and participating in meetings, reviewing reports, evaluating programs and staff and identifying unmet needs in their communities. The Town agrees to provide the following services to ensure that the FRCOG provides quality, efficient delivery of service:

- Appoint a member to the Oversight Board
- Assist Public Health Nurse in establishing work tasks and priorities,
- Communicate any concerns about the program first to the staff person involved, then, if needed, to the FRCOG Director of Community Services
- Prompt review of staff reports and other materials
- Prompt payment of invoices

Board of Health members are always welcome to visit any programs conducted by the Public Health Nurse. Board members interested in accompanying a CPHS staff person should communicate that request directly, on either a specific or general basis. The presence of a local Board of Health member is always a positive addition to code enforcement and public health work.

## 5. MUNICIPAL MEMBERSHIP ASSESSMENTS

All services rendered by the FRCOG shall be provided pursuant to a budget by the Oversight Board and the FRCOG through the annual budget process and a budget assessment formula approved jointly by the Oversight Board and the FRCOG. For towns participating in the Food Safety, Title 5 & Private Well, and Community Sanitation Programs (towns using the regional health agent), each town's assessment costs from the FRCOG will be offset by the regional collection of board of health fees. These fees will be set regionally by the Oversight Board, with involvement of all member Boards of Health, and ratified at the town level. They will be tracked by town, and the total collected in the previous year on behalf of each town will be used to reduce assessments

The FRCOG shall submit invoices for payment quarterly to Towns. Re-evaluation of the assessment shall be conducted annually prior to January 31<sup>st</sup> and notification of municipal assessments for the next fiscal year will be provided to the Select Board and Board of Health no later than March 15.

The town's maximum financial liability under this contract shall not exceed \$11,566.80 in FY 2021. Maximum liabilities for future years will be communicated no later than March 15 of the previous fiscal year. Any financial commitments of the Town as a party to this Agreement is subject to appropriation under their respective budgets and shall not exceed the amounts so validly appropriated. The Town acknowledges that under Section 11, Termination, the town will be bound for one year of payments after a termination notice is received by the FRCOG.

### 6. INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE

The Town shall indemnify the FRCOG from any and all debts, demands, actions, causes of action, suits, accounts, covenants, contracts agreements, damages and any and all claims, demands and liabilities whatsoever of every name and nature both in law and in equity on account of injury to person or property or loss of life resulting from the FRCOG performance under this agreement but only to the extent and in an amount for which the Town would otherwise be liable pursuant to the Massachusetts Tort Claims Act, M.G.L. c. 258.

FRCOG shall indemnify the Town from any and all debts, demands, actions, causes of action, suits, accounts, covenants, contracts, agreements, damages and any and all claims, demands and liabilities whatsoever of every name and nature both in law and in equity on account of injury to person or property or loss of life resulting from FRCOG's performance under this agreement but only to the extent and in an amount for which the FRCOG would otherwise be liable pursuant to the Massachusetts Tort Claims Act, M.G.L. C. 258.

By entering into this Agreement the parties have not waived any governmental immunity or limitation of damages which may be extended to them by operation of law.

The FRCOG and the Town shall obtain and keep in full force and effect public liability insurance in the amount of One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars combined single limit for bodily injury, death and property damage arising out of any one occurrence, protecting the other party against any and all claims for bodily injury, \$3,000,000 aggregate, death or property damage arising directly or indirectly out of the Indemnification Provisions of this Agreement.

### 7. FINANCIAL SAFEGUARDS

FRCOG Financial Responsibilities and Safeguards under MGL c.40 s.4a:

- a. FRCOG shall keep accurate and comprehensive records of services performed, costs incurred, and reimbursements and contributions received;
- b. FRCOG shall cause to be performed regular audits of such records;
- c. FRCOG shall issue periodic financial statements be issued to all participants.

# 8. WAIVERS

All covenants, conditions, duties and obligations contained herein can be waived only by written agreement by and between the Town and the FRCOG. Such waivers shall not be effective unless they are in conformity with all other requirements of law. Forbearance or indulgence in any form or manner by any party shall not be construed as a waiver, nor in any way limit the legal or equitable remedies available to either party. No waiver of any default or breach shall constitute a waiver of any subsequent default or breach.

# 9. AMENDMENTS

No amendment to this Agreement shall be effective unless it is in writing, signed by the duly authorized representatives of the FRCOG and the Town, and complies with the provisions of this Agreement, and all other regulations and requirements of law.

#### 10. FORCE MAJEURE

Neither the Town nor the FRCOG shall be liable to the other, nor be deemed to be in breach of this Agreement for failure or delay in rendering performance arising out of causes factually beyond its control and without its fault and negligence. Such causes may include, but are not limited to: acts of God or the enemy, wars, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, unforeseen freight embargoes, or unusually severe weather. Dates and times of performance shall be extended to the extent of the delays excused by this covenant, provided that the party whose performance is affected notifies the other promptly of the existence and nature of such delay.

### 11. ASSIGNABILITY

The FRCOG shall not assign any interest in this Agreement, and shall not transfer any interest in the same, without prior written consent of the Towns.

### 12. TERMINATION

This agreement may be terminated by any party for any reason upon at least one year's written notice from the date received by any party, sent by certified mail, return receipt requested. Such notice shall be signed by authorized officials of the parties, including both the Board of Health and Select Board from member towns. No such termination shall affect any obligations that may have arisen hereunder prior to such termination. The Towns shall equitably adjust any payments made or due relating to the unexpired portion of the Term following such termination. Upon such termination, the withdrawing Town shall be solely responsible for the provision of public health services for the benefit of that Town. Upon such termination, the FRCOG shall prepare full statements of outstanding unpaid financial obligations under this Agreement and present the same to the terminating Town for payment within thirty (30) days thereafter.

### 13. SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, the remainder of the Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and all other parts of this Agreement shall nevertheless be in full force and effect, so long as the Agreement continues to reflect the intention of the parties.

### 14. GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

#### 15. NON DISCRIMINATION

Neither the Franklin Regional Council of Governments (FRCOG) nor the Town shall discriminate against any person because of race, color, religious creed, national origin, gender, ancestry, sexual orientation, age, handicap, gender identity, genetic information, military service or any other protected class under the law with respect to admission to, access to, or operation of its programs, services or activities.

#### 16. NOTICES

Any notice permitted or required hereunder to be given or served on the Towns and/or the FRCOG shall be in writing signed in the name of or on behalf of the party giving or serving the same. Notice shall be deemed to have been received at the time of actual receipt of any hand delivery or three (3) business days after the date of any properly addressed notice sent by mail via the United States Postal Service as set forth below:

(Town)

(Contact Name)

Franklin Regional Council of Governments Phoebe Walker 12 Olive Street, Suite 2 Greenfield MA 01301

(Street Address)

(City, State, ZIP)

WITNESS OUR HANDS AND SEALS as of the first date written below.

Town of Gill Select Boa
-------------------------

Date

Town of Gill Board of Health

Date

Linda Dunlavy, Executive Director, FRCOG

Date

#### Attachment A: The Four Cooperative Public Health Service Programs

For each of the four (4) programs, the CPHS Oversight Board has identified measures of evaluation – how we know our district is working as it should. Each of the programs here is described briefly, and the specific measures of success listed. Towns can be *Comprehensive* members -- using all four programs, or *Shared Services* members – using between one and three programs.

1. **Public Health Nursing Program:** Towns participating in this program receive communicable disease control, chronic and infectious disease prevention, and wellness programming, including multiple regional walk-in wellness clinics, vaccination clinics, and chronic disease self-management support.

#### Evaluation Measures:

- CPHS coordinates with town officials to organize annual vaccination clinics serving all ages.
- CPHS conducts outreach to residents to identify community needs and encourage access to
  public health nurse for screenings, management of chronic health conditions, medication
  management, and vaccinations.
- CPHS screens residents at risk for communicable diseases and monitor their treatment as required by statute or regulation.
- CPHS participates in town health fairs and other community public health information/screening events for employees or the general public.
- CPHS public health nursing services are integral to the town's emergency response planning.
- CPHS ensures the Town is in compliance with the requirement to be on MAVEN, and staff check it regularly and follow up as required to protect public health. CPHS provides prompt response and follow up of communicable disease cases occurring in each town, both to complete mandated reporting and to assure residents receive appropriate care
- CPHS coordinates with schools, senior centers and other service agencies serving the public health, as needed, to assist in meeting community health goals.
- CPHS staff attend training and maintain necessary professional licenses and certifications to carry out the duties of the Public Health Nursing Program.
- 2. **Community Sanitation Program:** Towns participating in this program receive a broad range of inspection, education, assistance, management, and enforcement related services mandated under the state sanitary code, including housing, nuisance-type conditions, hoarding, recreational camps for children, family-type campgrounds, public and semi-public pools, beaches, lead paint, burials, body art, and hotel/motel/short term lodging.

#### **Evaluation Measures:**

- CPHS responds promptly to requests for housing inspections.
- CPHS generates housing inspection reports that include references to the relevant code sections, a timeline for coming into compliance a list of violations, information about requesting a hearing.
- CPHS goes to court adequately prepared.
- CPHS ensures that a certified lead determinator is present at any housing inspection in a dwelling with a child under 6.
- All recreational camps for children are permitted and tracked through the CPHS online permit system.

- CPHS provides inspections of all recreational camps for children and generates and maintains inspection reports for each camp held in the town.
- Summer camp organizers receive pre-inspection information before the season about what the town expects.
- Camp inspections follow the state inspection report template and include a pre-site review of all required policies and plans, and on-site inspection of the camp facility & operations.
- State inspection reports are on file for each pool in town for at least one inspection per year.
- All public and semi-public pools in the town are permitted and tracked through the CPHS online permit system.
- All Family type campgrounds are permitted and tracked through the CPHS online permit system.
- All bathing beaches are licensed annually and tracked through the CPHS online permit system.
- CPHS inspects and permits all motels, hotels, bed & breakfasts, short term rentals, and temporary lodging and tracks the information through the CPHS online permit system.
- CPHS actively investigates and manages hoarding cases, including connecting residents with service and participates in the Western MA Hoarding Task Force.
- Camp reports are submitted to DPH on time annually.
- CPHS participates in DPH Community Sanitation Program trainings and seminars.
- CPHS staff attend training and maintain necessary professional licenses and certifications to carry out the duties of the Community Sanitation Program.
- 3. *Food Safety Program:* Towns participating in this program receive food permitting, inspection, and enforcement services for all restaurants, caterers, mobile food operations, seasonal kitchens, schools, bed and breakfasts, residential food production kitchens, public kitchens (churches, Grange halls, etc.), retail food, farm stands, farmers market, and temporary food service operations for events.

**Evaluation Measures:** 

- All food service establishments are permitted and tracked through the CPHS online permit system.
- CPHS completes and maintains documentation that food inspections are done as required for all food establishments.
- Inspection reports indicate the code reference for each violation and action necessary to achieve compliance.
- Food inspection records indicate that violations have been addressed during re-inspections.
- Records are on file for each temporary food vendor at all temporary food events.
- Inspections happen timely at all food vendors for public events.
- Complaint related food inspections are completed timely.
- Reports are submitted to DPH on time.
- The CPHS works with community groups that use public kitchens to ensure that they are educated about safe food handling practices.
- CPHS applies for Food and Drug Administration funding for the town to improve food safety.
- CPHS require water testing for temporary food events not on public water, for bed and breakfasts, and for residential kitchens.
- CPHS staff attend training and maintain necessary professional licenses and certifications to carry out the duties of the Food Safety Program.
- 4. Septic and Private Well Safety Program: Towns participating in this program receive a full complement of services to manage all requirements related to septic systems and private drinking water supplies.

**Evaluation Measures:** 

- All soil evaluations and percolation tests are witnessed for the town and tracked in the CPHS online permit system.
- CPHS ensures an Approved Soil Evaluator is present at every soil evaluation for a system upgrade/repair, in event of a local upgrade approval request.
- Disposal system construction applications and permits are tracked in the CPHS online permit system.
- All septic plans are reviewed with standardized checklist pursuant to the state code and CPHS requirements.
- CPHS provides on-site inspection and tracking of all final inspections for new septic systems, upgrades/repairs, and system component replacements.
- All official title 5 inspections in each member town are witnessed by CPHS and tracked in the CPHS online permit system. All witnesses for CPHS are state licensed System Inspectors.
- All private well applications and well permits are tracked in the CPHS online permit system. Well site inspections are conducted and technical support provided, as needed.
- Review building permits and sign-off, as requested, for compliance with applicable regulations and standards.
- CPHS attends DEP Title 5 and drinking water trainings and seminars.
- CPHS staff attend training and maintain necessary professional licenses and certifications to carry out the duties of the Septic and Private Well Safety Program.